





Minutes of Coalisland Town Centre Forum Meeting Wednesday 16th November 2022 at 5.30pm Microsoft Teams

Present

1. Cllr Niamh Doris Mid Ulster District Council (Chair)

Cllr Joe O'Neill Mid Ulster District Council
 Cllr Malachy Quinn Mid Ulster District Council
 Cllr Niall McAleer Mid Ulster District Council

5. Francie Molloy MP Coalisland Residents & Community Forum

6. Sharon McGowan Department for Communities

7. Patricia Toner Sole Sister

In Attendance

8.	Colin McKenna	Mid Ulster District Council
9.	Catherine Fox	Mid Ulster District Council
10	. Annette McGahan	Mid Ulster District Council
11	.Emma Hughes	Mid Ulster District Council
12	.Johnny McNeill	Mid Ulster District Council

	DISCUSSION			
1.	Apologies			
	Cllr Dan Kerr	Mid Ulster District Council		
	Cllr Robert Colvin	Mid Ulster District Council		
	Adrian McCreesh	Mid Ulster District Council		
	Fiona McKeown	Mid Ulster District Council		
	Michael McGibbon	Mid Ulster District Council		
	Raymond Lowry	Mid Ulster District Council		
	Seamus Warnock	Mid Ulster District Council		
	Ursula Marshall	Mid Ulster Disability Forum		

	Aedamar McCrossan	PSNI		
	John Paul McCartan	PSNI		
	Avril Sharkey	Department for Communities		
	Lesley Maxwell	Department for Infrastructure		
	Brian O'Neill	Coalisland Credit Union		
Raymond O'Neill		Eden Blooms		
	Dermot McGirr	Translink		
	Declan Dorrity	The Venue/The Beer Shed		
	Olly Design that Olly is a selection of the second of the second of			

2. Cllr Doris, the Chair, welcomed everyone to the meeting.

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting – Monday 7th February 2022

Proposed by F Molloy

Seconded by Cllr N Doris and agreed:

The minutes of the meeting held on Monday 7th February 2022 were a true and accurate record of proceedings.

4. Matters Arising from Previous Meeting – Monday 7th February 2022

There were no matters arising.

5. Coalisland Project Updates - C Fox updated Members and shared photos

Coalisland Public Realm is nearing final completion with minor snagging to be undertaken. C Fox shared photos of the completed works. A follow up walkabout is planned for the next few weeks before it will be formally handed over to Dfl.

PEACE IV Shared Spaces Project has been completed with the amphitheatre seating, benches and lighting at the start of the Canal all installed. The awnings in the seating area have been taken down by MUDC Properties to be stored away for the winter. Area has seen wide usage.

There will be a tree planting ceremony taking place on Thursday 17th November 2022 with 4 local schools planting trees at the start of the path.

El Scheme – all capital works have been completed bar some snagging.

F Molloy and Cllr M Quinn offered congratulations for all the works that have been completed.

Gortgonis

Cllr N Doris wanted it noted that the information in relation to the withdrawal of funding for Gortgonis works are incorrect. There are no further updates in relation to the proposed works, Neighbourhood Renewal funding is for a hub only. She also suggested a meeting between Council and relevant bodies to discuss further.

Action: C Fox to liaise with C Linney in relation to organising a meeting with local representatives to discuss update on Gortgonis.

Brand Development

There has been a positive reception to the Coalisland brand so far with merchandise being distributed at the Coalisland Summer Bash. Merchandise was also distributed to local schools in June and were received well.

There is a bag drop planned for the week commencing 5th December 2022 to local retailers. C Fox suggested having a few retailers on board that could act as collection points for Coalisland merchandise.

Action: Bags to be delivered to the Sinn Fein office and to Cllr M Quinn.

P Toner asked if it is possible to sell the Coalisland bags if the current supply runs out. C Fox said there are 5,000 bags and would address how supply is at next meeting. Any further purchasing of bags would depend on budget availability.

F Molloy proposed that the Coalisland brand could be used for Christmas cards next year.

Festive Lighting

The new Christmas lights and Christmas tree will be switched on Sunday 4th December 2022. F Molloy asked about the current metal tree – C Fox informed that it is to be erected this week however due to its condition and advice from MUDC Building Maintenance, this will be the last year it will be used.

Mid Ulster Gift Card

C Fox updated Members with the Programme Summary Report for period 8th November 2021 until 31st October 2022

- Total No. of businesses registered to date 206
- Value of Gift Cards funded £25,655
- Cards activated 799

Events

A successful Coalisland Summer Event was held on the Friday 24th June 2022 with merchandise distributed at the event. Next year the event will be held in its original location of opposite Newell Stores in the civic area.

The Halloween Event took place on the Monday 31st October 2022 and was, as always, a successful night despite the weather conditions.

Coalisland Christmas Lights switch on, in conjunction with Craic Theatre, will take place Sunday 4th December 2022 in Cornmill Car Park from 5.00pm with switch on of lights at approximately 6.50pm. The new Christmas Tree and Christmas street lighting decorations will be in place in advance of the switch on.

Cllr M Quinn put forward a suggestion for Coalisland to host an International Food Festival next year, similar to Cookstown's Continental Market but offer a different approach such as bringing in Lough Neigh Artisans. C Fox advised that she would liaise with the Tourism department to determine possible market providers. At present, there was not a budget through Council for a food festival but there were opportunities for private providers to use Coalisland as a location in the future.

Action: C Fox to liaise with the Tourism department to determine possible market providers.

6. Any Other Business

Cllr M Quinn raised a question in relation to the resurfacing of the Dfl roads.

Cllr M Quinn also raised the issue regarding the bridge crossing from the Canal towpath over to Uppercut coffee shop. C Fox said that Council could not be seen to promote one business but suggested that an alternative could be that local companies could design and install and she would check with R Lowry and K Gordon.

Action: C Fox to liaise with R Lowry and K Gordon re bridge on Canal towpath

S McGowan asked if it is possible to organise an in-person meeting between Council (T Scullion) and Councillors in the new year in relation to land issues.

Action: Request to Terry Scullion for an in-person meeting with DfC and Councillors.

P Toner asked if it would be possible to have more social media promotion in the Town. C Fox informed that whilst Council cannot be seen to favour particular businesses, all marketing is completed at key periods throughout the year e.g. Christmas shopping, with key shop local messaging.

Cllr M Quinn raised the point in relation to the Coalisland town boundary and the exclusion of key businesses e.g. the Enterprise Centre. Cllr M Quinn highlighted that there needs to be a strategic response in relation to this area and should be reviewed through the local development plans for the Town.

Action: Strategic response required from all Members in relation to Town Centre Boundaries

Cllr N Doris proposed that future meetings should be held bimonthly to which all agreed Cllr M Quinn asked if a meeting could be held in early January 2023.

Action: Invitations to the next meeting to be issued this week (once a date has been confirmed).

C McKenna informed members that C Fox will be leaving her Regeneration Manager's post in December 2022 and commended her for her commitment and hard work during her 5 years in the job. Members offered their best wishes to her in her new role.

Meeting ended at 6.25pm

7. Date of Next Meeting

Monday 16th January 2023 at 5.30pm on MS Teams

MID ULSTER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT GROUP MINUTES Friday 11th November 2022 at 10am via Zoom

Present

Cllr Frances Burton	Mid Ulster District Council
	(Chair of TDG)
Mary McKeown	Mid Ulster District Council
Charmain Bell	Mid Ulster District Council
Allison O'Keefe	Mid Ulster District Council
Grace Booth	Mid Ulster District Council
Norman Bell	Visitor Attraction
Richard Mulholland	Hospitality
Cathy O'Neill	Hospitality
Dermot Friel	Hospitality
Cllr Walter Cuddy	Mid Ulster District Council
Cllr Martin Kearney	Mid Ulster District Council
Cllr Sean Clarke	Mid Ulster District Council

DISCUSSION		ACTIONS			
Welcome	a chaired the meeting and welcomed all				
present.	chaired the meeting and welcomed all				
Cllr F Burton spoke	about the Mid Ulster Business Excellence				
•	lace in The Corick House Hotel on 10 th				
November. She connominated.	ngratulated all the businesses who were				
normiatou.					
Cllr F Burton congr	atulated D Friel who won business person of				
	oned how the Royal Hotel, Cookstown & The				
<u> </u>	Hungry Goat Restaurant in Dyan had won awards. Cllr F Burton				
made a suggestion					
acknowledging the	iii loi tileli awalus.				
Apologies					
Fiona McKeown					
Genevieve Bell					
Brian McCormick					
Anne Reid	Mid Ulster District Council				
Martha Beattie	Mid Ulster District Council				
Tanya Purvis	South West College				
Martin Graham	Tourism NI				
Claire Doherty	An Carn				

1. Minutes of Meeting held on 7th September 2022 Minutes approved. Proposed: N Bell Seconded: D Friel

2. Matters Arising

N/A

3. Industry Update

Ballyscullion Park

R Mulholland said that weddings have picked up with 76 last year and approx. 60 wedding expected this year. The focus is on promoting the cottages and a few Air bnb's.

R Mulholland said they would be expected 25 tours next year. R Mulholland also mentioned the difficulties facing the industry due to rising interest rates and the economy.

Friel's Bar & Restaurant

D Friel said the motorhome park has now been passed for 6 motor homes & they are liaising with the Council Planning Department to increase this to 12 motorhomes. D Friel said they had added on a shower block with full disabled access.

Friel's are working with The Causeway Coast and Glens.

The Famine and Folklore Project has reached the architectural stage and this is going out to tender next week with the work planned to commence in January or February 2023.

D Friel discussed how Friel's had a successful summer with Tours, commenting that the last 5 tour groups each had different tour operators. They had received 12 requests from ITOA.

The Christmas markets in Swatragh are commencing next week & D Friel thanked Council for support with the stalls. 10 stalls have already sold. D Friel commented on how this has helped launch Christmas in the village.

They received great feedback from the Great Days Out Event with 6/7 leads from this event. D Friel attended World Travel Market on Monday 7th November and said this was a fantastic opportunity to network with other businesses.

Killymoon Castle

N Bell mentioned bookings for the Christmas candle light suppers and how the WW2 Museum was doing well. They have decided to leave tours until after Christmas. They are experiencing smaller tour groups of approx. 25 -30 people. This includes Women's groups and Local History groups.

N Bell praised the success of the Great Days Out Event. N Bell suggested an improvement for the future would be to encourage a wider district to attend the next event.

Cllr F burton acknowledged M McGee's Giant Spirit Award and congratulated Seamus Heaney HomePlace on winning the innovation award.

Business Engagement Programme – M McKeown

M McKeown said there is a new Business Engagement Officer starting on Monday 14th November. They have a great background in tourism, having previously attended trade shows and having worked closely with the tourism department in Council.

M McKeown thanked businesses for their kind words.

M McKeown mentioned she attends Tourism NI marketing meetings every month.

M McKeown acknowledged the success of the Great Days Out event which had 30 exhibitors and over 50 group organisers who attended. M McKeown said going forward these events should be open to free independent travellers.

M McKeown provided an update on the Social Media Workshops. Each workshop has received a great number of bookings and keen interest from the industry. Participants provided great feedback on the facilitator. M McKeown mentioned the upcoming workshops next week and encouraged the businesses to attend.

M McKeown also mentioned the last Social Media Workshop which is happening on 17th January in The Glenavon House Hotel. This will focus on LinkedIn and Social Video Content. This has been promoted through the tourism email database, ezine and Whatsapp group.

Two Officers from The Tourism Department will be attending ITOA on Thursday 17th November 2022.

World Travel Market

C Bell provided an update, stating that this was the first in person event since 2019. World Travel Market took place on Monday 7th November & Tuesday 8th November. Tour operates are keen on visiting Seamus Heaney open ground, The

Banquet and the OM night time experiences. There is an interest in accommodation in Mid Ulster.

C Bell is networking with tour operators. Friel's Famine story has been well received, Lough Neagh Stories attended with Lough Neagh tours.

EF Tours have contacted Friels and Walsh's hotel. There is interest in The Glenavon Hotel and River Bann tours.

C Bell mentioned their work with Rory's Travel Club. She advised that there may be opportunity for him to work with accommodation in Mid Ulster. They are In the process of building an APP to offer discounted rates directly to customer. This will help increase bed stays in Mid Ulster.

M McKeown stated that staff from the tourism department would be attending Meet the buyer again in March 2023. There will be a focus on developing further FAM trips.

The tourism department will be attending the Holiday World Show in Dublin and trade will be invited down to book a stand.

C Bell has started to engage with the accommodation sector through an accommodation webinar hosted by Tourism NI.

N Bell asked 'How did Mid Ulster Council do at the event compared to other Councils?'

M McKeown said she was confident with our work. We have developed contacts with Game of Thrones and other districts are coming to Mid Ulster for advice. Tour operators have greater interest in coming up North for tours. There will be a focus on pushing accommodation in Mid Ulster.

M McKeown also commented on the growing relationship Mid Ulster has with Visit Derry.

D Friel said Visit Derry is a great link for Mid Ulster Tourism. He advised the department should be a member of Visit Derry.

Cllr F Burton stated how she is looking forward to the new Business Support Officer starting to build strong relationships across the district.

Cluster Reports

5.

Seamus Heaney Cluster - C Bell

5.1

C Bell mentioned that the cluster brand had now become established and was launched at The World Travel Market. The

cluster has been rebranded as "Loughinsholin". Glenn from McCadden is to present the new branding to members at the next Tourism Development Group Meeting.

Clogher Valley – M McKeown

As read. Work is underway with the consultant to complete phase one of the project.

Archaeology, History & Heritage – M McKeown

As read. M McKeown mentioned the success of Great Days
Out and our Hidden Heritage Tours. The Heritage Strategy
Engagement workshop on 10th November helped to showcase
Mid Ulster heritage.

M McKeown thanked Killymoon castle for their hospitality during the workshop. H McLaughlin from The Rural Centre is leading the Heritage strategy in collaboration with Council. The aim is to have the strategy developed by next year 2023.

Outdoor Activities - A O'Keefe

A O'Keefe said the first walking event was very successful. A O'Keefe advised that they hope to run the event again next year and entice ROI market to attend, budget permitting.

Visitor Monitoring Results – M McKeown

- **6.** As read. M McKeown briefly outlined the visitor figures,
 - Beaghmore up 2000 visitors between June and September
 - Tullyhogue Fort 500 visitors,
 - Davagh 1000 visitors
 - Ballyronan Marina (monitor reinstalled)
 - Springhill house 5000 visitors
 - Walled garden visitor figures were slightly down
 - Lough Fea there were more cars than walkers (they use carpark for hillwalking to Slieve Gallion)
 - Fivemiletown monitor installed last year
 - Moyola river figures were the same as last year
 - US. Grants Homestead had the same figures
 - Pomeroy Forest figures were down by 40,
 - Washingbay, An Carn, Knockmanny and Blessingbourne visitor figures remain the same
 - Coalisland canal visitor numbers are up by 5000
 - Solar walk visitor numbers are approx. 10,000.

Brown Signage – M McKeown

M McKeown provided an update on the progress of the Brown Signage audit. M McKeown said there has been good progress made from the last meeting, the audit is moving forward and MUDC will be appointing an external auditor to carry out the signage audit.

There will be an expression of interest sent to businesses that wish to apply, January / February. A letter signed by the Council Chair will be sent letter to review the current signage policy.

Council received a letter from Transport NI which stated they have no audit or data on current signage. Councillor S Clarke echoed the need for this brown signage audit with Councillor M Kearney in agreement.

Autumn Marketing Campaign Update

M McKeown stated that Tourism have a smaller budget this year. The autumn marketing campaign has been very successful.

C Bell had pulled together competitions for Cool FM running from 1st – 7th November. For this campaign they used existing content. M McKeown advised they were waiting on Cool FM to announce the competition winners.

The new spring marketing campaign will be launched in March 2023, with a key focus on advertising on the Cool FM Breakfast show targeting the family market. There will be longevity with the advert and competition.

The campaign ran over Halloween on 31st October with an increase in people looking for accommodation, places to eat and autumn offers.

The competitions ran from 31st October to 3rd November using organic social media.

M McKeown stated she would like to shoot and use new video content for the Spring Marketing Campaign. M McKeown proposed the idea of the tagline 'Open for business.

Any other Business

M McKeown mentioned the Slaibh Beagh project – report under cluster groups. Monaghan County Council, Fermanagh Omagh

8.

9. Council and Mid Ulster District Council completing shared island application with Monaghan County Council taking the lead.

M McKeown provided an update on funding, stating that £145,000 has been secured for a euro feasibility study in the Clogher area. This is going out to tender in next few weeks, with companies being appointed after Christmas. There will be potential revenue for market led.

Next event outlined is the Cookstown Christmas lights switch on, on Friday 25th November 2022.

Date of Next Meeting

Wednesday 25th January 2023 via Microsoft Teams

10.

1. Seamus Heaney Cluster - C Bell

The cluster met on Thursday 27th October in Ardtara house, and is progressing well with their Phase 2 Invest NI Collaborative Growth Programme with Lara Goodhall. Subgroups meetings have taken place for each of the four work streams:

Governance:

The group are in the final stages of establishing governance documents such as Memorandum of Understanding covering membership criteria, geographic remit of the cluster, fees, etc. A final draft will be presented to the full cluster group at the next meeting on the 24th November.

Marketing and Communications:

The group are developing the strategic marketing plan and have met to discuss key actions, a final draft will be presented at the next full cluster meeting. An area of priority is the new brand. Final four brand options were presented to the full cluster group. A vote took place with all members, and a final decision has been made on the name. This will allow the designers to create the final artwork for the new brand. Glenn from McCadden can present the new brand at the next Tourism Development Group meeting.

The new brand will be launched at World Travel Market (WTM) with a PR campaign working along with Tourism NI and Tourism Ireland. Lara assisted several of the cluster members with applications to the Mid Ulster Business Awards. Friel's, Glenshane Country Farm, Ballyscullion House and River Bann Tours have all been shortlisted.

Business Development:

Engagement has taken place with cluster members to develop collaborative itineraries which can be presented as sales meetings. Lara's team have secured several appointments with key tour operators at WTM to promote the cluster. Lara will be attending ITOA on the 17th November.

A key focus is securing FAM Trips with key tour operators. Crafted Ireland FAM took place on Saturday 1st October, with positive feedback.

Skills Development:

Initial training sessions are planned to include Digital Marketing Training, Industry Insights and Tourism NI –Leaner Greener Tourism.

2. Clogher Valley Cluster – G Bell

A new Clogher Valley Cluster collaborative group has been developed with a strong focus on tourism and economic growth in the Clogher Valley area with a minimum of 4 SMEs.

The Cluster has appointed Runda Hospitality and Tourism Solutions Consultants to facilitate and scope out collective opportunities for the SME businesses over the next 6 months, with completion due by 31st March 2023. This programme focusses on the development of a strategic approach to maximising tourism and business

opportunities and associated economic growth within the Clogher Valley area of Co. Tyrone.

The CVTC has received Phase 1 support via the Invest NI Collaborative Growth Programme and Mid Ulster Council.

Key cornerstones of this tourism-development focused programme will include: Training and mentoring supports across the following core topics/pillars:

- Communications and branding
- Product development
- Sustainability
- Commercial strategies and skills

The Clogher Valley Cluster membership includes:

- 1. Todds Leap
- 2. Blessingbourne Estate
- 3. Corick House Hotel & Spa
- 4. The Valley Hotel, Fivemiletown
- 5. St. Macartan's Forth Chapel, Augher

The SMEs have embraced a cluster approach, which will allow them to increase productivity, be more innovative and help maximise key strengths to collectively grow. The businesses will work in partnership with Runda to undertake a scoping study, which will culminate in the development of a strategic tourism product and plan, with the end goal of maximising economic growth and job creation in the Clogher Valley area.

Through collective ideas generation, prioritisation of common goals, understanding how each business can contribute to a shared vision and working to develop saleable experiences for the area, this cluster will act as strong economic driver. Further, they will identify strengths and skills gaps in their respective organisations and work to ensure capacity in key areas e.g. marketing/finance to deliver and grow individual and collective tourism products.

Through this cluster the groups ambition is to identify and market this unique region, that is so accessible, replete with outdoor, heritage and tourism assets and upsell other hospitality and leisure opportunities as part of the wider product. Each cluster business will focus on marketing their own unique product whilst collectively working with other businesses within the cluster to develop new packages and programmes, market their product as an add-on, scope out new markets and market segments while encouraging visitors to spend more time and money in the area.

3. Archaeology, History & Heritage Cluster – G Bell

Hidden Heritage Tours 2022

The 2022 Hidden Heritage tours proved to be extremely successful, allowing visitors the opportunity to sample unique visitor experiences whereby they could step back in time and discover what's on their doorstep. An additional tour, Poetry

and Prayer was included within the series. Feedback has been excellent for all Hidden Heritage tours. Officers are now planning next year's series of tours;

- Killymoon Castle All-American WW2 Tour, Saturday 18th June 2022, 9.30am -2.30pm This tour was fully booked and this new experience helped raise awareness and resulted in Killymoon being able to deliver additional WW2 tours during the rest of the summer.
- 2. A Village of Ages A historical walking tour of Donaghmore Village was scheduled for Saturday 2nd July 2022, however the date was changed to Saturday 17th September to secure living history actors. Unfortunately this was cancelled at short notice as it coincided with the official mourning period of Queen Elizabeth II. This tour will now take place in the 2023 series.
- 3. Poetry and Prayers a Spiritual Tour around Lough Neagh, Thursday
 7th July, 1.30pm to 6.00pm
 Another fully backed tour and it's success has resulted in securing further

Another fully booked tour and it's success has resulted in securing further bookings for the tour guides who devised this unique experience.

4. The Emigrant's Walk, Maghera, Saturday 8th October, 9.30am – 3.15pm The last of the hidden heritage took place with Cathy O'Neill who led the group up Carntogher Mountain, following in the footsteps of our ancestors, where the views stretched across the hills.

Great Days Out Fair, 2022

Great Days Out event took place in the Glenavon Hotel on 19th October. The event showcased the vast array of tourism businesses and experiences across the Mid Ulster District which can offer a range of great day trip experiences and overnight stays.

30 Mid Ulster tourism businesses highlighted their experiences at the Fair and approximately 50 group organisers attended. The feedback has been very positive with some exhibitors securing group bookings for 2023.

Heritage Strategy Engagement Workshop – Thursday 10th November
The Rural Centre, in partnership with Mid Ulster District Council has conducted research in the form of a survey on how we can promote our built, natural and cultural heritage to encourage more people to engage with these heritage assets and foster greater community/visitor engagement. The findings of this survey and the way forward will be discussed at an engagement workshop in Killymoon Castle on Thursday 10th November.

4. Outdoor Cluster - A O'Keefe

The Sperrins Walking programme was attended by 85 participants over the weekend of 24th and 25th September. Weather was perfect over the weekend and provided a perfect opportunity for drone footage and photography.

Both challenging walks, Slieve Gallion on Saturday and Moydamlaght to Glenshane on the Sunday proved most popular, with the Slieve Gallion walk selling out quite quickly. The Davagh walk was also well attended and included the new Solar Walk from OM to Beaghmore. Going forward there may be an opportunity to provide two Slieve Gallion walks on both days when planning next year's programme.

Participants were asked to complete a short Survey Monkey and a short synopsis of the results from those who completed the survey were:

- Majority of participants travelled within 20 mile radius
- Some participants travelled within 20 mile to 50 mile radius
- Small number of participants travelled between 50 mile and 100 mile radius
- All were pleased with tour guiding services provided
- From the small number surveyed caravan and camping was the main accommodation booked
- Average spend between £20 £100
- All surveyed wish to be informed of future events

Each of the Councils met with Sperrins Partnership to review this year's programme and manage expectations for next year. Subject to budgets, we will meet with the other 3 Councils and Sperrins Partnership in January to begin planning another walking programme for September 23.

5. Visitor Monitoring Results – M McKeown

DISTRICT WIDE MONITORING RESULTS 2022					
Pedestrian Counters unless otherwise stated	Jan-March	April-June	July-Sep	Oct - Dec	TOTAL
Beaghmore Stone Circles	6063	9809	13639		
Tullaghoge Fort	3861	3744	4342		
Davagh Car Park (car)	3562	3875	4909		
Davagh Pump Track	1493	1656	1899		
Davagh Forest	2503	2706	3727		
Davagh Red Trail	1948	1207	1156		
Ballyronan Marina (car)	46848	84089	88752		
Springhill House	15435	16509	17372		
Wellbrook Beetling Mill (car)	damaged	damaged	damaged		
Maghera Walled Garden	closed	5899	5428		

	1		1	
Lough Fea Pedestrian	20027	10693	11364	
Main Car Park	13453	17292	25009	
Dungannon Park Car Park (car)	94559	124631	133707	
Roundlake Fivemiletown	11650	14043	13722	
Seamus Heaney HomePlace	10226	14131	7329**	
Seamus Heaney Moyola River	4261	7966	7336	
Seamus Heaney Long Point Wood	12574	23664	23501	
Lissan House	3973	5565	5965	
US Grant Ancestral Homestead	824	1263	1228	
Pomeroy Forest	3534	4100	4321	
Washingbay	39158	27090	24863	
An Carn	1476	1748	1543	
Knockmany Forest	19499	24341	13550	
Blessingbourne FMBT	502	666	796	
Portglenone Riverside Walk	4775	17667	8952	
Iniscarn Forest	2477	4143	3020	
Coalisland Canal	4329	6904	11867	
Beaghmore Solar Walk	Installed 12.01.22 6195	6121	10573	

^{**} Upstairs counter not working for 25 July to 31 August